
 

 

Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, November 27, 
2007 at 6:30 pm at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber Drive.      
 
Members Present: 
   Don Farr, Chairman 
   David Gailey, Member 
   Allen Miller, Member 

Norm Searle, Member 
   Bart Stevens, Member 
   Kathy Tanner, Member 
 
Members Excused: 
   Don Hunt, Member 
Others Present:  
   Randy Daily, Community Development Director 
   Marie Alvord, Planning Commission Secretary 
   Approximately six (6) Citizens 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Farr called the meeting to order and welcomed all those in attendance.  He acknowledged that 
Commissioner Hunt was excused. 
 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 
Comments and changes were requested in the preplanning meeting. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tanner moved to approve the Preplanning and Regular meeting minutes of 

November 13, 2007 with corrections noted and waive the reading of the minutes.  
Commissioner Miller seconded the motion.   

 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
3. CONSIDERATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 
BILLBOARD, REGAN OUTDOOR ADVERTISING, 1700 WEST & I-15 
Tracey Stout, Reagan Outdoor Advertising representative, noted that the request is to move the existing 
billboard to the furthest south border of the property. Current and proposed locations of the billboard were 
discussed. Ms. Stout noted that the property owner, Mr. Burton requested that the sign be on the north or south 
end of the property. Chairman Farr asked if they have received approval from the State of Utah to move the 
billboard. Ms. Stout noted that the State requires City approval before they will grant authorization. Mr. Jeffry 
Burton requested to speak. He noted that in his opinion it makes good planning sense to place the sign on one 
end or the other of the property. Mr. Burton does not have any specific plans for the property but would like to 
have the most use of it as possible. Commissioner Miller asked if by moving the sign it will allow for another 
billboard sign on the north end of the property. It was noted that a minimum of 500 ft is required between 
billboard signs and the next sign is only 700 ft away therefore another sign will not be permitted.  



 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 2 November 27, 2007 

Motion: Commissioner Miller moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the Conditional Use  
  Permit allowing the existing billboard sign to be moved to the south end of the property.   
  Commissioner Gailey seconded the motion. 
 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
4. CONSIDERATION AND RECOMMENDATION OF PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN FOR 
RIVERDALE TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT, LOCATED IN THE 550 WEST RDA, EAST OF 
DISCOUNT TIRE CO. 
Mr. Daily noted that the petitioner is present to answer questions. He informed the Planning Commission that a 
Public Hearing has been set for December 11, 2007 to hear public input concerning this PRUD. Mr. Daily said 
a decision concerning the preliminary site plan may be made tonight or tabled until after the Public Hearing. It 
was noted that the RDA Board has approved the use of this area as a townhouse PRUD and it must meet all 
requirements of City ordinance.  
 
Discussion was held concerning the proposed layout and size of the townhouse. Commissioner Tanner asked 
where the open space will be located. Mr. Shawn Strong noted that the open space will be the hillside with a 
trail system and pavilions. The trail system was further discussed with regard to the 300 West update. 
Commissioner Tanner said in her opinion there needs to be more amenities provided to the residents of the 
PRUD. Commissioner Stevens suggested that there be a place that will accommodate children and to 
incorporate a structured place for them to go that will be maintained. Commissioner Miller read from City 
Code 10-22-4 and emphasized that City code requires “usable open space” and said in his opinion storage and 
natural landscape is not usable open space. Mr. Daily clarified that the City is looking for usable open space in 
the form of a recreational amenity that may be use by the residents of the PRUD. Commissioner Gailey noted 
that there is a large area on the site plan that is dedicated to a parking lot and in his opinion it is wasted space 
that may open up more area for usable open space. Commissioner Miller suggested moving the housing units 
over where the commercial development is indicated on the site plan and to use the center as open space. 
Commissioner Tanner concurred noting that she would like to see the open space more central.  
 
A general discussion was held on street completion specifically width, sidewalk, curb and gutter, and fire 
hydrant placement. Commissioner Searle noted that with the type of housing the buyer’s market will most 
likely have children and he expressed concern to have a development that has only one sidewalk and shallow 
setback requirements. He noted with current PRUD developments there are issues with parking, cars blocking 
sidewalks and little open space and it was his impression that the City was trying to get away from these 
problems.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the following items: 

• Maintenance of hillside and landscaping 
• Fencing  
• Extension of 500 West  
• Drainage  

 
It was noted that because the developer has expressed a desire to remove the propose commercial building 
fronting on 550 west and make this part of the PRUD that this plan needs to address this and other issues 
before a preliminary approval could be granted. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tanner moved to postpone any recommendation for preliminary site plan approval 
for the Riverdale Townhouse Development located 550 West RDA area east of Discount Tire Co. 
Commissioner Miller seconded the motion. 
 
 



 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 3 November 27, 2007 

Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. DISCRETIONARY BUSINESS 
Commissioner Searle asked if there was another Public Hearing scheduled for December 11, 2007. Mr. Daily 
noted that a rezone request will also be scheduled for that meeting.  
 
Commissioner Stevens asked when the City’s annual banquet will be held. Mr. Daily said he was unsure of the 
date and asked Ms. Alvord to notify the Planning Commission of the date and time.  
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Commissioner Miller moved to 
adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Tanner seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. The 
meeting was adjourned at 7:30 pm. 
 
 
Attest: Approved: 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Marie Alvord, Don Farr, Chair 
Planning Commission Secretary                                         


